
TOWN OF PATTERSON 
 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING 
June 4, 2009 

 
AGENDA & MINUTES 

 
                 Page # 
1) Guiding Eyes for the Blind – Public 

Hearing 
1 – 10 Public Hearing continued and closed. 

Asphalt parking area waiver granted. 
    
2) Mystic Bronze – Sign Application 10, 32 – 

33 
Neon sign and advertising discussion. 

    
3) Tractor Supply – Sign Application 10 – 11 3 Signs granted at May 28th Work Session. 
    
4) Patterson Village Condominiums – Sign 

Application 
11 Replacement sign granted at May 28th Work 

Session. 
    
5) Haviland Hollow Holdings – Request for 

Waiver of Site Plan 
11 Discussion at May 28th Work Session. 

    
6) Steger Property – Amended Site Plan 

Application 
11 Applicant did not appear; no discussion. 

    
7) Meadowbrook Farms – 

Wetland/Watercourse Permit 
11 – 12, 
22 – 25 

Resolution for Incomplete Application granted. 
HOA Attorney expressed concerns for the 
record. 

    
8) Fox Run Phase II – Continued Discussion 12 – 21 Discussion on recommendation, traffic, water 

and sewage treatment systems. 
    
9) Patterson Crossing Retail Center – 

Continued Review 
25 Application removed from agenda. 

    
10) Other Business   
      a.     Green Chimneys School – 

Generator Shed 
25 – 28 Pictures review, Shed enclosure design accepted 

and granted. 
      b.     Sign Code 28 – 30 Recommendation to the Town Board was made. 
      c.     Rimaldi Site Plan – DOT 

Correspondence 
30 – 32 Positive recommendation to Zoning Board of 

Appeals was made. 
    
11) Minutes 33 – 34 April 2nd, April 28th & May 7th approved. 
    
 NRA Realty & Development 34 – 35 280-A request made to Town Board. 
    
    
    
 



 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

P.O. Box 470 
1142 Route 311 

Patterson, NY 12563 
 

Michelle Russo 
Sarah Wagar 

Secretary 
 

Richard Williams 
Town Planner 

 
Telephone    (845) 878-6500 
FAX             (845) 878-2019 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 TOWN OF PATTERSON 
 PLANNING & ZONING OFFICE 

 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Howard Buzzutto, Chairman 
Mary Bodor, Vice Chairwoman 

Marianne Burdick 
Lars Olenius 
Gerald Herbst 

 
PLANNING BOARD 

Shawn Rogan, Chairman 
David Pierro, Vice Chairman 

Michael Montesano 
Maria Di Salvo 
Charles Cook 

 
Planning Board 

June 4, 2009 Meeting Minutes 
Held at the Patterson Town Hall 

1142 Route 311 
Patterson, NY 12563 

 
 

Present were: Chairman Rogan, Board Member Montesano, Board Member DiSalvo, Board Member Cook, 
Rich Williams, Town Planner and Ted Kozlowski, Town of Patterson Environmental Conservation 
Inspector, Andrew Fetherston from the Town Engineer’s office, Maser Consulting and Carl Lodes from the 
Town Attorneys office, Curtiss and Leibell. 
 
The meeting began at 7:30 p.m.  
 
There were approximately 9 members of the audience. 
 
Michelle K. Russo was the Secretary and transcribed the minutes. 
 
Chairman Rogan led the Salute to the Flag. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated thank you folks, please be seated.  Before you read the public notice, I just want 
those present to be introduced to Andrew Fetherston, who is our new engineer from Maser Consulting.  
Andrew will be with us at least at minimum the next six or eight months. 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated right. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and we are going to welcome Andrew and we are looking forward to working with 
him.  I will ask the secretary to please read the public hearing notice for Guiding Eyes for the Blind. 
 
 
1) GUIDING EYES FOR THE BLIND – Public Hearing 
 
Mrs. Theresa Ryan of Insite Engineering, Mr. Andrew Leonard of A.T. Leonard & Associates, Ms. Jane 
Russenburger of Guiding Eyes, Ms. Jennifer Reinke of Keane & Beane and Mr. Erik Kaeyer from KG & D 
Architects. 
 
The Secretary stated public not, public, oh excuse me. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 2  

 
The Secretary read the following notice into the record: 
 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the Town of Patterson Planning Board of a public hearing to be 
held on Thursday, June 4, 2009 at 7:30 p.m. or as soon thereafter as may be heard, at the Patterson Town 
Hall, 1142 Route 311, Patterson, Putnam County, New York to consider an application entitled Guiding 
Eyes for the Blind Site Plan and Wetlands/Watercourse to redesign/reconstruct the dog breeding and 
placement center. The property is located at 361 Route 164, Patterson, New York.  All interested parties 
and citizens will be given an opportunity to be heard in respect to such application. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated good evening Theresa. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated good evening.  I just want to know if anybody is here for the public hearing that would 
like a presentation. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated anyone, anyone, anyone specifically here for Guiding Eyes, why don’t you do a, 
yup. 
 
Unknown Audience Member stated I was here the last time. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh okay, so you’re familiar with the project.  So, just do a brief overview. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated okay, the project contains thirty-one acres, its located on the south side of Route 164 
about a quarter of a mile east of Farm to Market Road.  The project currently contains the shaded building 
which is an administration building, kennels, canine development, there are some outdoor dog runs and 
socialization areas outside.  What we are proposing is an 18,850 square foot two-story breeding kennel 
building that will replace an existing kennel building of about 3,600 square feet.  Also proposed are 
extensive outdoor socialization areas that are going to developed in more detail than what is currently 
existing, all of the areas will be located either just to the east of the proposed building and most of it is 
going to be proposed behind the building.  Route 164 is in this, in the northern portion of the site, so the 
majority of the socialization areas will not be seen from Route 164.  We are also proposing additional 
parking area, stormwater management area and expansion of this septic system. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated do I have any questions or comments from anyone in the audience at this time.  No 
questions or comments from anyone, can I have a motion to close the public hearing. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated make a motion to close the public hearing. 
 
Board Member Cook seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asks for all in favor: 
 
   Board Member Cook  - aye 
   Board Member DiSalvo - aye 
   Board Member Montesano - aye 
   Board Member Pierro  - absent 
   Chairman Rogan  - aye 
 
Motion carries by a vote of 4 to 0. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 3  

 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated I just wanted to bring up a couple of things in Rich’s memo, I saw the new engineer’s 
memo and it looks like we can address all those items, pretty straight forward.  Rich mentioned that we still 
need a waiver, somebody mentioned that we still need a waiver for the proposed parking.  We are 
proposing now, gravel pave, instead of the. 
 
Rich Williams stated grasscrete. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated grasscrete, I’m sorry, for the proposed parking area here.  That will hold up to the truck 
turning, we demonstrated in an earlier version that the trucks can pull in here, back up and turn around and 
go out, WB-50’s.  We are anticipating that most of the truck traffic will not be that big but the grasscrete is 
monolithic poured, reinforced concrete, fill with gravel. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so it’s pervious. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated its fifty percent voids. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh, okay. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated yup. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, so when it’s done, does it look like a grass pavers, does it have like a honey 
comb design to it. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated similar. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Rich Williams stated Shawn, Mahopac Library, I believe used it. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh okay, those aren’t grass pavers, those are monolithic pour. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated that is, that’s similar, that is a turf stone, I think product but the one that we are proposing 
to use. 
 
Rich Williams state but it’s. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated is on Hughson Road, right at the intersection with Maple [Avenue] in Carmel.  There is a 
warehouse there, that has that product. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated oh okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated all right.  Rich or Andrew, any concerns or anything to want to bring up with 
regard to those, the concept or certainly anything you want to bring up, please jump in. 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated no, I thought, WB-50 would have no problem with that, with the loading, I 
actually complimented the design on the number of different stormwater items that they did use.  Some of 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 4  

 
them of course were different treatments for training of the animals but would also function to shrink up 
some stormwater promote infiltration. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated thank you. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated are you, so if I’m clear, were you saying we need a waiver of the use of that as 
opposed to the. 
 
Rich Williams stated our Code requires essentially asphalt on any parking or driveway surfaces. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay and that is just for a section of the parking lot. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated that is the new, the new parking area. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated the new parking area, okay, all right, so the existing parking area, does that need a 
top coat or is that. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated partly. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated achieved the way it is. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated partly, a little bit more. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated partly, all right.  Make a motion in the matter of Guiding Eyes for the Blind that the 
Planning Board grants a waiver from requiring asphalt paving over the new parking area and allows the.  
How did you refer to it, what’s it called. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated grasscrete. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated grasscrete system to be placed there, so moved. 
 
Board Member Montesano seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asks for all in favor: 
 
   Board Member Cook  - aye 
   Board Member DiSalvo - aye 
   Board Member Montesano - aye 
   Board Member Pierro  - absent 
   Chairman Rogan  - aye 
 
Motion carries by a vote of 4 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated we also wanted to discuss one other item that Rich brought up and that is the proposed 
parking spaces.  When we did a septic assessment we realized that we needed more additional, more space 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 5  

 
for the septic system then we originally thought, so we lost a couple of spaces for the proposed parking 
area.  Thanks Andrew, so we are at forty-eight right now, we have the potential to pick up a couple of more 
spaces and if this is, if the Board is okay with it.  There is a striped area that is an existing parking space 
now, it is used by the maintenance vehicles and that’s, we striped that out, so that in the event of an 
emergency the vehicles, the emergency vehicles can come around to the side of the building where we put 
the access at the request of the Fire Code Enforcement Officer.  However, the maintenance vehicles could 
still use that because they are the ones who will assist the emergency vehicles in getting to that part of the 
site, through the fence, the gated fence. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated the. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated and would we like to still use that as a parking space just for maintenance vehicles. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so that I’m clear, those parking spaces, if there were vehicles in those spaces that 
could not be moved, are there other areas that the emergency vehicles could get around the building or is 
that the only access way. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated that would be it. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that would be it, so in the middle of the night, let’s say, there is an emergency 
where they have to get fire apparatus or something around the back of the building, those vehicles, 
maintenance guys aren’t on site. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated they would still have to get somebody there to unlock the gate and allow the. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated this gate isn’t going to have a key that would go to the fire department, what are 
they called Knox Box or something. 
 
Rich Williams stated I’m sure there is going to be some sort of locked gate that the fire department is going 
to have access to, in the event that they don’t, they do carry equipment that will take care of that issue. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and the cars I’m sure. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated and the truck. 
 
Rich Williams stated well, but and I don’t know, Andrew may have a little bit more knowledge on this, I 
believe that fire code is not going to allow vehicles to be parked there, it’s going to be blocking the access. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated regardless of what we think. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated yeah. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated okay. 
 
Board Member Cook stated Theresa. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated we can possibly pick up one more space here by extending this out, based on our in house 
engineer’s review of the septic system design, so that would bring us up to forty-nine spaces and based on 
the analysis that we previously submitted.  We have forty-seven at maximum at any given time. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 6  

 
 
Rich Williams stated Theresa, can I ask, on the other side of that parking lot, it seems like you’ve got some 
distance between that side of that parking lot and the septic area. 
 
Mr. Leonard stated in this area. 
 
Rich Williams stated in there, yeah. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated that is reconfigured, that is going to be part of the septic system also. 
 
Rich Williams stated so you are just now showing the correct configuration on this plan with the septic. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated right and that has, that’s been looked at in more detail since we made this submission to 
the Planning Board.  This is actually further over this way and this is tighter to the parking. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so how many spaces would you be short from what is required. 
 
Rich Williams stated they are saying they are. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated two over then there is one other option, where we can extend this island by striping and 
add another space in here, these are the existing spaces.  This access isle is well in excess of the twenty-
four feet that we need so we can narrow that up to twenty-four feet and add another parking space here that 
would go next to the other existing parking spaces.  Now, you already gave us a waiver on the existing 
parking spaces to nine feet. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated if we could still hold nine feet for, we could add one additional space right in this area. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated is that area necessary for turning around the tractor trailers. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated no, the tractor trailers are going to come into this isle, not this one. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated so they won’t go to that point. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I think I would rather leave the ability for those trucks to have a little more 
maneuvering and lose on space, personally. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I don’t know about anybody else. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated I don’t know, can we go on that side and do that again. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated he didn’t, you were in the way. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated I can’t see it. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 7  

 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated I’m sorry. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated I realize, not to be, I just can’t, I tried but I left my Superman glasses 
home. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated you couldn’t see through me.  Right in here, Mike, it’s, we were talking about, there are 
six existing spaces right in here. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated right. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated this is well over, this is over thirty feet in width, if we narrow that down, is it too loud. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah but its not you. 
 
Rich Williams stated you’re talking so loud, you shouldn’t be using the mic. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated I was told to. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you’re talking with authority. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated you were told to speak up. 
 
Board Member Cook stated keep up the good work Theresa, keep up the good work. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated don’t let him buffalo you, just let him go inside. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated I told you it was going to pick up too much. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated anyway, if we extend this island with striping, we can add another space at the end. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated all right, thank you. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated right in here. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you need to continue speaking while Rich lowers it, so we know. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated yeah, testing, testing. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated I’m sorry. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you have to keep speaking so when Rich lowers it, we know whether we can hear 
you. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated Rich. 
 
Rich Williams stated yeah. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated can you hear me. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 8  

 
 
Rich Williams stated I can hear you. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated close the door, nobody will know the difference. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated recite the Gettysburg Address or something. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated yeah, right. 
 
Board Member Cook stated we are in agreement that there will be no parking to block that. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated emergency access. 
 
Board Member Cook stated emergency, right. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated yup. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated they never say that big D-9 that comes rolling in before the fire truck, 
takes the building down, any cars in the way. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated if someone in the back of the room could just help us out, if its not clear. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated is that better. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated or we’re not picking up on the microphones, just please let us know, it seemed like 
it was picking up a little too much there for a minute.  We were getting a lot of feedback, so we’d 
appreciate that. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated I think the fire department is on their way over.  So we will keep the number of spaces the 
way we have it, okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated if we end up running one short because of that or something. 
 
Rich Williams stated I missed that, are they going to add the one. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated no. 
 
Rich Williams stated not even the one on the end of that parking area. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated no, we were thinking that. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated we might add it over here, which, you wouldn’t have a problem with but not here. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated over there would be fine but not off there. 
 
Rich Williams stated I didn’t like the other either. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh okay. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 9  

 
Mrs. Ryan stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, if you can get one by the septic area, if the works out, in fact once we know 
you nailed down that septic design we are going to have a better idea, so that would be great. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated okay and I just want to also let the Board know that there are other people in the team 
here tonight, I’m sorry did you want to. 
 
Mr. Leonard stated just one thing on that parking space. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated Andrew Leonard is one of them, from A.T. Leonard & Associates, he’s the planner for 
the project. 
 
Mr. Leonard stated thanks, when we were looking at the septic, we want as many spaces as possible as 
well, we meaning Guiding Eyes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated sure. 
 
Mr. Leonard stated so if we can get another one over in this area, beyond the one that we know we can get, 
we are going to get another one. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Mr. Leonard stated what we are in now, is a detailed calculations and all the health offsets from the 
parking. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated understood. 
 
Mr. Leonard stated so we are within inches now and not feet.  So hopefully we can even get one beyond the 
one we know we can get. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated great. 
 
Mr. Leonard stated so, if we can, we will, thanks. 
 
Mrs., Ryan stated okay, also here is the project architect, Erik Kaeyer, from KG&D Architects and the 
project attorney, Jennifer Reinke from Keane and Beane, so if you have any additional questions for them. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated nope but since you’re all out here, do you have anything you need to go over with 
the Board, I mean. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated oh and I’m sorry, Jane Russenburger, senior director. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated last but not least. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated sorry Jane, you’re so quiet, she is the senior director for canine development. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated nope, we’re moving along nicely, we appreciate everybody’s hard work on this and 
it seems like we’ve had virtually no negative feedback on this.  There has been a lot publicity on this, I 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 10  

 
mentioned tonight in the papers, prior to the meeting, I read at least three different articles about tonight’s 
public hearing and everything seemed like it was in a positive light, I know that you got through Zoning 
Board and so we are very happy that you are here in our Town and we appreciate that amount of work that 
has gone into this place, very, very nice job. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated thank you. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, thank you.  Actually Ron is sitting back there, Ron I think you hit the nail on 
the head when you saw their conceptual plan, what did you say. 
 
Mr. Taylor stated bravo. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated bravo, thank you. 
 
 
2) MYSTIC BRONZE – Sign Application 
 
The applicant did not appear. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated is anyone here for Mystic Bronze Tanning Salon, no, okay.  Let everybody clear 
out for a second. Thank you, thank you, I know you have to hang around. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated what. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I know you have to hang around, right, yeah we’ll try, we’ll do our best. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated thanks. 
 
 
3) TRACTOR SUPPLY – Sign Application 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay Tractor Supply, there was a sign application we had approved at the work 
session. 
 
Board Member Cook stated we should mention Mystic and approving a temporary sign. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I apologize, for Mystic Bronze, yes. 
 
Rich Williams stated Mr. Stenger said he was probably not going to be here until eight o’clock, just so you 
know. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that’s fine, fantastic, thank you. 
 
Rich Williams stated and I assume Dian, also. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Mystic Bronze Tanning Salon, at the work session the Board had approved a six 
month extension to a temporary sign, part of that application was a permanent sign that the Board found not 
acceptable.  It was like a neon flashing, lit sign that we are going to work with them on a hopefully a design 
that will be more in. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 11  

 
 
Board Member Cook stated in keeping. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated keeping, thank you, with the character of the community in that area, over at the A 
& P shopping center, so hopefully somebody will show up for them tonight. 
 
 
4) PATTERSON VILLAGE CONDOMINIUMS – Sign Application 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Patterson Village Condos, we approved a replacement sign to replace the existing 
sign that is on site, no size increase or really change other than a new sign. 
 
 
5) HAVILAND HOLLOW HOLDINGS – Request for Waiver of Site Plan 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Haviland Hollow Holdings is a request for a waiver, we spoke with the owner Jim 
Byron and he will be submitting applications in the near future.  So we will continue when we get more 
information on that project. 
 
 
6) STEGER PROPERTY – Amended Site Plan Application 
 
The applicant did not appear. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated no one is here for Steger, so hopefully before the end of the meeting, some one will 
be here for that. 
 
 
7) MEADOWBROOK FARMS – Wetland/Watercourse Permit 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Meadowbrook Farms, it doesn’t look like anyone is here for yet. 
 
Unknown Audience Members stated we are here. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated the attorneys, they are here, okay great. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated and I can recuse myself and. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated let the record show that Mike Montesano has recused himself from this project, 
application. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated she’s not here. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Dian Larkin, though you said. 
 
Rich Williams stated is Dian here, have you seen Dian. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated when Ted said I’ll get them, we were waiting also for them to, did she say what 
time she’d be here. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 12  

 
 
Rich Williams stated she did not. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated if you would be so kind as to give us a few minutes, we’ll work through a couple 
more project and give you the benefit on this one. 
 
Mr. Stenger stated it’s your agenda, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated thank you very much. 
 
 
8) FOX RUN PHASE II – Continued Discussion 
 
Mr. Joseph Zarecki was present to represent the application. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Fox Run Phase II, I see Mr. Zarecki back here.  Poor Mike, Mike recused and he 
left so.  Good evening sir. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated good evening, how are you. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated how are you, just give us one second here that we form a Board again.  Ted how 
are you this evening. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated wonderful Shawn. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated good. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated how are (inaudible). 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I’ve had worse. 
 
Board Member Cook stated Mr. Chairman, I think Mike went out for a cold one. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated in the men’s room. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, we’ll, Ted can you just keep an eye out for Mike Montesano, he might be in 
the bathroom, when he comes out you can let him know that we are going to skip Meadowbrook for just a 
few moments, so he can come back in. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so anyway, Fox Run Phase II, Mike has seen this, we all have seen, we had asked 
Rich to help us out a little bit here in quantifying and putting together what we saw as the pros and cons. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated right. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated the Board has been on both sides of this in terms of liking components of each idea 
of single family homes and of multi-family.  We recognize and I think you had said it in you memo that 
there are things that are going on, on this site that certainly are not the fault of the developer, there are 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 13  

 
issues that just happen to be.  The Board, I’ve gotten the sense that the Board has not been strongly to one 
side or the other and in fact we have spoken about the idea of referring it over to the Town Board with 
simply our commentary or observations if you will.  We weren’t, to be honest, we weren’t really sure 
which way a vote would go on this and I don’t think we made it, we certainly didn’t make a decision at the 
work session but we wanted to just make sure that what we had on paper was the Board’s feeling.  Rich 
was kind enough to put some of this together for us, if there is anything that anybody wants to just add in, 
we could do that and we regret that Dave Pierro isn’t here tonight, he had some medical family business to 
take care.  We were hoping to have a full Board here for a vote of either referring to the Town Board just 
saying look, we’ve exhausted our review of this and here is the information because ultimately they are 
making the decision anyway or putting it to a vote and seeing you know, which way it goes on this.  I 
haven’t heard anybody stand out and say I absolutely think it should be one way or the other this, clearly 
there have been pros and cons and that is why I like the way Rich put it. 
 
Rich Williams stated just so I can set the clear direction where I think we are going with this is the memo 
that I gave you tonight, I plan on taking that, adding whatever recommendation the Board makes on this 
and the preamble on this and then leaving the pros and cons in for the Board, for the Town Board, as the 
recommendation from this Board.  So, I think what you need to be looking at is, is the language correct, are 
the pros and cons correct. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Rich Williams stated is there anything you need to add or is there anything you need to take out. 
 
Board Member Cook stated perhaps, relative to the waste water treatment system. 
 
Rich Williams stated yes. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated is that a pro or a con. 
 
Board Member Cook stated that’s a con, number two.  I see where you mention that relative to the water 
supply system the applicant would need to petition the Town to be included in the district that has been 
created. 
 
Rich Williams stated correct. 
 
Board Member Cook stated okay, or construct their own separate water supply system, okay.  Go back to 
the waste water treatment, can you just amplify that a little bit. 
 
Rich Williams stated the waste, sure, the waste water treatment plant is under single ownership by the 
HOA, similar to the driveways and why I put this in the con column is because right now there is no 
standing agreement that the future developer would be maintaining either the waste water treatment plant or 
the roads. I mean, that would be subject to, I’m assuming some sort of legal agreement and/or negotiation 
with the HOA but at this point we don’t know what that is going to be, again there is an easement that says 
he can tie into the waste water treatment plant, there is nothing that says he’s going to contribute x amount 
of dollars or a proportion or his fair share or anything I could find. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated right, we are, we have every intention of tying and I’m sure towards the latter part of the 
process, all that would come forward, assuming, making the assumption that if we go that way, which 
would need to tie into and all those things were ironed out, at that point would it be a plus or a minus, a pro 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 14  

 
or a con.  In other words, if we did, the only way this is going to happen, this project is going to happen is if 
we tie into the sewage treatment plant and from what I know, nobody is going to let you tie in for no cost or 
for no documentation or for no agreement.  Once the agreements are there, I’m sure there would be cost 
sharing for the operation of the plant and whatever else goes into it, I think that once we had that, that 
would share the cost of the operation and would be a pro to the homeowners that are already there, 
operating a plant with four thousand gallons a day versus the additional cost and expenses, to me, if we did 
tie into it, it would be a pro as opposed to a negative, I see your point. 
 
Rich Williams stated if everything worked out fine, I agree, it probably would be a pro but I think as this 
Board has learned tonight that the rights of ownership are not always clear cut and negotiations regarding 
future improvements are not always cut and dry and sometimes it can be you know a problem also. 
 
Board Member Cook stated see. 
 
Rich Williams stated I’m talking about a different, I’m referring to a different project. 
 
Board Member Cook stated I understand that. 
 
Rich Williams stated I just wanted to jump in. 
 
Board Member Cook stated I see it in, one of your previous memos, you talk about paying for all costs 
associated with drilling a new well when a building permit was issued, I’m sorry drilling a new well and 
making a connection to the existing water system, so you kind of addressed the water system a tiny bit.  
You don’t address, what I’ve been able to see, anything relative to the waste water treatment, I mean, this 
just mention the verbiage now, we don’t have any documentation on that. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated it was my understanding. 
 
Board Member Cook stated and I think that, see it,  that point and the fact that the need to petition the 
Town to be included in that water supply district is kind of like two items that are up in the air and to me 
make it difficult to make a recommendation to the [Town] Board because you’re saying you can address 
one, okay, if the Town allows you, you know, so right now its kind of nebulous, I don’t know how, I don’t 
know how to address this, you know what I’m saying. 
 
Rich Williams stated no, I agree that is why I put it in the con column. 
 
Board Member Cook stated yeah. 
 
Rich Williams stated because it is something that is very nebulous, potentially it could work out, potentially 
the HOA could be enthusiastic about having additional users in the waste water treatment plant cost 
sharing, the same with the district, same with the roads.  Potentially they could say, you know what, we 
want a better deal and we’ve not going to agree to anything and it not work out that they are going to agree 
to you know, allow the applicant to participate, in which case, we have a longer jam where he’s got 
somewhat of a right to do it and yet they are going to be resistant to that. 
 
Board Member Cook stated right and the other thing too is that, the if we were to make a positive 
recommendation and the Town Board goes along with it and they re-zone the property, which has been re-
zoned several times and I mean, all of this what you just described Rich, happens that there is not this 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 15  

 
agreement, then where are we at, where is the Town at from the standpoint of do they go back and re-zone 
it again. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated well the Town wouldn’t zone it, the Town wouldn’t finish the re-zone until that 
was resolved.  Wouldn’t that be one of like a condition or, no. 
 
Rich Williams stated I don’t know that, I would think that the Town would do the re-zoning. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated we talked about as the units were going to be sold there would be a 
monetary contribution made to the Homeowner’s Association, that could go on for infinity by the time 
those units are sold. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated well when we get the building permits, I think I believe I said building permits. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated building permit, not sale, prior to build. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated oh okay, so each unit would have its own building permit or the whole 
development would be on one. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated if it was a whole unit, a whole unit with four units within, that would be four units. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated four thousand. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated each stand alone structure. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated each stand alone structure would be defined as four thousand dollars. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated so say if the construction slows down, like what’s happening now, every 
where, that can go on for years without you starting another phase, another building there with that 
contribution to be made. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated that is correct, that is the way (inaudible). 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated this could take another four or five years before they go through all the 
phases for the buildings for any kind of monetary. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated well I think what you’re getting at is if at some point a plan gets approved for forty-
four units, upon completion of the plan, that monetary would go over to the HOA regardless of building 
permits, that that is the, I think that is kind of what you’re gearing towards. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated yeah in other words, he should be paid up. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated just like recreation fees. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated right, right. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 16  

 
 
Board Member Montesano stated right. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated when you get the approvals not when you build the home. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated right. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated not when you are starting to building. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated recreation. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated gotta ask him if we can put that in there, that would be a problem because 
once you start the project, that eliminates the time limit because you’ll be doing, even if you did one. 
 
Rich Williams stated Shawn. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yes. 
 
Carl Lodes stated I’m not sure there is any authority for imposing that kind of a. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and this Board hasn’t even spoken about imposing that authority that was an offer 
from, the discussion has clearly been surrounding the offer that the developer has suggested, it has nothing 
to do with this Board requesting it.  So, I think that, and I appreciate you bringing it up but that is definitely 
the light that we need to keep that in because there is not a clear connection with that money and things that 
we have identified to know that they would resolve those issue and certainly people would agree that it 
would help out the Homeowner’s Association with some of the infrastructure improvements. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated right. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated at the facility, the existing facility. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated and that comes back as, if the, if the contributions aren’t made then the 
infrastructure can’t be addressed. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated well they are two separate things though, some of it is just generalized 
improvement to the existing facility, the infrastructure improvements that will be needed to facilitate the 
new buildings are things like water and septic that he would have to do. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated we can’t impose something that HOA, if they want to impose it, that gets 
these two fractions involved, we don’t have that authority to impose anything.  All we can do is make a 
request and let them and then it can be looked at by the applicant and the HOA and then go from there but 
we can’t put it in writing anywhere because we don’t have that authority.  What I’m trying to find out. 
 
Rich Williams stated Mike, I’m concerned that the Board is even talking about it at this point because 
approvals can’t be based on a quid pro quo justification. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 17  

 
Board Member Montesano stated right, what I’m looking at is we have forty odd units or even units, if the 
building is permitted, the first permit for construction is, let’s say for arguments sake there are five 
buildings involved.  If the building starts on building one and proceeds to two and then stop for a certain 
amount of time, does our five year or any time period that we have legitimately on building permits have 
any, what am I. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you’re asking if there is a time frame required to complete the project. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated statute of limitations. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated right, to complete the project and if so. 
 
Rich Williams stated I. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated I’m just trying to find out basically, how long could it go on. 
 
Rich Williams stated I’m just going to say Pondview. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated but there are no structures built there. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated that’s one. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that’s different. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated its vacant land there right now. 
 
Rich Williams stated right. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated what about Ciccolanti, over in Kent, start construction and it kind of sits there. 
 
Rich Williams stated that’s a better one. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, that’s a good example. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated yeah and that is what I’m trying to see if we can avoid. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I think. 
 
Rich Williams stated you can’t. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated I was just wondering if there was still anything in place, I just wanted to 
clarify. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I think and you know, they are all good questions and good points but I think we 
have to get back to the idea of looking at the impacts and whether or not we feel that the property would 
more properly be served and the community would more properly be served by single-family homes on that 
property or multi-family housing and I think it really gets back to that main issue.  If the property were up 
front, meaning that you got to that lot first before driving through the existing facility, it would be a 
different scenario. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 18  

 
 
Board Member Montesano stated if it was a Blackberry Village. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated where the houses are in the front and then. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you’re driving through single-family residences to get to multi-family. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated right to get to the multi-family, that would be, there would be no 
questions involved. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you know, the mixed use is difficult either way because at Blackberry [Village] you 
have a lot of traffic going through single-family roads, single-family residences to get to those, its, you feel, 
it’s a balancing act. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated well. 
 
Carl Lodes stated right now at this point, you seem not to be able to make one recommendation over the 
other. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated correct. 
 
Carl Lodes stated why not, its within the Board’s discretion just send it up to the Town Board, with the pros 
and cons and see if we can (inaudible). 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I think that is kind of where we are going with this, to. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated we are just trying to clarify it so that when they call us back and say what 
are you recommending, we can say well this is what we’ve got. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and in fairness to Mr. Zarecki, I’m sure he can see we have all gone round and 
round on this, we are not trying to make a rash decision. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated you know the issues very well. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and we clearly see that there are benefits to each concept. 
 
Board Member Cook stated I would just like to see and whether it falls into a pro or a con, more of a 
description of that waste water treatment plant, the issue, relative to the emergency generator and how that 
ties in. 
 
Rich Williams stated there is no issue with that emergency generator. 
 
Board Member Cook stated there is no issue, okay.  Can the, there is a waste water treatment plant there 
now. 
 
Rich Williams stated there is. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 19  

 
Board Member Cook stated can it handle an additional forty-eight units. 
 
Rich Williams stated it would be questionable if it could but I think that is a moot point because it is slated 
to be upgraded, it is way behind schedule, I know they are looking to actively start construction any time 
now.  So, by the time he gets through the Zoning issues, through the site plan issues, pulls are building 
permit, that thing has got to be done.  So, and the new plant will be able to handle the additional capacity. 
 
Board Member Cook stated thank you. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated why don’t we wait and see what happens when the new plant is upgraded. 
 
Rich Williams stated I’m not sure what the relevance is, we know it’s going to be upgraded, we know it has 
capacity. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated before, right but maybe that capacity will be almost at capacity on what is 
there now. 
 
Rich Williams stated they are designing it for the additional capacity. 
 
Board Member Cook stated so part of this applicant’s, if he was in for a site plan review, he would have to 
address the issues of the waste water treatment system and the water system. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated correct. 
 
Rich Williams stated how he is going to tie and what mechanisms there are going to be for cost sharing. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated cost sharing and all the issues all that would come up during the Planning process. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and to be fair, that level of detail to get a referral, a recommendation one way or the 
other from this Board, can be somewhat exhaustive.  I’m willing to even assume that those connections can 
be made and you know the project can’t be built without those things to regardless of what we were to 
recommend, so if we recommend positively, that we think multi-family is a great idea. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated that was the point. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, no and I understand your point and I tend to agree with it.  I get back to the 
road, Bullet Hole Road, the amount of cars that are already in and out of this place and the amount of 
vehicles that are jumping down on Tammany Hall Road to short cut over to the highway.  At points, can be 
downright dangerous and we add in forty-four more units, I am very concerned about that.  I’ll tell you that 
is my key issue right there, is the trip generation at the bottom of the page. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated volume should be emphasized more. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated the problem I’m having right now, is do we actually have any authority 
to, we ask for traffic studies when we get a project, do we have the authority, in any way, shape or form to 
have, to force a Town to improve a road or a County, to improve the road.  Because there were other 
projects that were building Tammany Hall, et cetera and we had to put them in, we had some road 
improvements done but the entire road was never complete. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 20  

 
Chairman Rogan stated I think the clear distinction would be if this was a standalone piece of property and 
you were denying the gentleman some use of the property.  Right now you have a reasonable use of the 
property which is what its zoned for, its zoned for single-family homes on four acre lots, we are not taking 
that right away.  I think the burden becomes if the surrounding roadways, you feel can not support 
changing zoning, I think that is a separate issue, by, one second Mr. Zarecki and then you’re in.  By 
denying say single-family homes on the site, then you’re its potentially, you’re taking away the use of the 
property, go ahead sir. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated I believe there was a report from one other project. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated there was. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated I didn’t do the report for the traffic study and it was my understanding that the traffic 
study proved that the traffic increase would be sufficient in capacity on the roads, although it wasn’t 
specifically for this project. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated obviously during the Planning process, again, its back to, at the planning stage, the 
traffic study would have to be conducted and all that information would have to pan out to the Board’s 
satisfaction for safety issues. 
 
Rich Williams stated if I could just jump in here, the traffic study we are talking about was for Burdick 
Farms, I assume. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated (inaudible). 
 
Rich Williams stated it was for an eighty-one lot subdivision, I’m sure the Board is very familiar with that 
project.  The traffic study basically focused on whether the intersections had capacity and if you remember 
during the process, it became some what of a sticking point.  They were ignoring road geometry issues and 
just focusing on the intersections.  We started talking about specific areas of road geometry on Bullet Hole 
Road that is when the report started to crumble, for example they ended having to agree that there were site 
and geometry issues along parts of the frontage.  So they actually gave us additional land in which to make 
some improvements but the report did say that there was adequate capacity for that project at the 
intersections, failed to do the whole geometry of the road though. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated the traffic. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated it doesn’t relieve the obligation of the applicant to do the traffic, just because they 
rezone it, doesn’t give and doesn’t relieve the obligation to come up with a traffic study that is favorable to 
the Board.  We just have to get to that point first, if its not favorable, what can be done to mitigate those 
conditions that existing, that are making it unfavorable, such is the case. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay.  So, lady and gentlemen, how do we move forward from here, what does 
everybody want to do.  We are missing one member, have we expressed our concerns appropriately enough 
in the memo. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 21  

 
Board Member DiSalvo stated I want to go back to the quality of life issues too, I just don’t feel there is 
enough, not open space but recreational space there for what is there now to have more people living there.  
I didn’t see any nicely maintained, not play ground but you know. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated open space. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated I saw a pool that’s falling apart, I saw a basketball hoop that was twenty 
years ago, you know. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated well let put it out this way.  There are four of us here, is anybody willing to make a 
motion positive recommendation to rezone the multi-family on this, do I have any takers. 
 
Board Member Cook stated I think we’ve dealt with this project awhile now and I think in all fairness that 
we should wait for Dave, I’m not trying to push this off sir, it’s just that he has been involved on these 
discussion also and come next meeting, we make our determination as long as there is a quorum.  If 
somebody is absent next meeting, we can’t keep postponing this that is my point. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay is that everybody’s feeling. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated yeah. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated yes. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated Dave has been involved in it much. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated absolutely and he’s had a lot of input on this and if that’s okay with you sir, we’ll 
take that stance. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated that’s fine. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we appreciate your time. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated not a problem. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we are certainly not trying to waste your time, I hope you get a sense of how we’re 
struggling with this. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated I understand and I appreciate you time. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated thank you very much. 
 
Mr. Zarecki stated thank you very much. 
 
Board Member Cook stated thank you. 
 
 
 
 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 22  

 
7) MEADOWBROOK FARMS – Wetlands/Watercourse Permit 
 
Ms. Dian Larkin, Attorney for JGZ Resources and Mr. Kenneth Stenger, attorney for Meadowbrook Farms 
HOA were present. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oaky, we have Meadowbrook Farms Wetlands/Watercourse Permit. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated and I’m out of here. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Mr. Montesano is recusing himself, as previously stated. Okay, so now we have 
three of us, lady and gentleman, we have gotten numerous correspondence from both the applicant and the 
Homeowners’ Association.  We have before us one main conflicting point, as to the rights of the developer 
to improve certain properties for stormwater retention.  We have also asked for our counsel to take a look at 
everything and our Board’s findings are that we have significant enough information on this to present that 
there is a conflict that exists and that it is not this Board’s purview to decide on that.  That we are not judge 
and jury in this case.  We have a resolution prepared for this evening, Charlie I believe, would you like to 
read that resolution. 
 
Board Member Cook stated at a duly noticed meeting of the Planning Board of the Town of Patterson, held 
on June 4, 2009, Whereas the Planning Board of the Town of Patterson has received a wetland/watercourse 
application from JGZ Resources, Inc, dated July 13, 2007 and Whereas said application proposes the 
construction of one or more improvements within a regulated wetland or buffer area for Phase II of the 
Meadowbrook Farms Subdivision, including an expanding subsurface treatment system and expanding 
stormwater detention pond and a new stormwater filler and Whereas said application submitted for a 
freshwater wetlands and watercourse permit represented JGZ, wait a second to get this one.  Is it JZG. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated JZG. 
 
Board Member Cook stated okay, well it was wrong up there, Resources as the owner of tax map lots 3.19-
1-47 through 73 and 3.-1-87 and Whereas issues have been raised by Meadowbrook Farms Homeowners’ 
Association as to the authority of, this keeps going back. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it’s JZG. 
 
Board Member Cook stated yeah, JGZ Resources, Inc. to make the present application and with respect to 
the interpretation to be afforded to certain documents affecting title to the property known as Meadowbrook 
Farms and shown in filed maps number 2395 and 2395 A and Whereas by letter from Dian Larkin, dated 
June 4, 2009, subsection A, the developers representative acknowledges that the developer does not owner 
said not, identified as tax map 3.-1-87, on which the stormwater practices will be located and Whereas the 
Planning Board has read, reviewed and considered the submissions made by the Meadowbrook Farms 
Homeowners’ Association and JGZ Resources, with respect to the afore mentioned issues and Whereas the 
Planning Board finds a controversy existing between a Meadowbrook Farms Homeowners’ Association 
and JGZ Resources, Inc. with respect to the afore mentioned issues but Further finds that it is without 
jurisdiction to determine those issues and Whereas absent a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction or an agreement between Meadowbrook Farms Association and JGZ Resources, Inc.  The 
Planning is unable to determine whether the present application is property before it.  Now therefore be it 
resolved that the Planning Board finds that the application of JGZ Resources, Inc. is incomplete and be it 
further resolved that the Planning Board shall not consider the application until such time as the issues set 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 23  

 
forth in this resolution are either determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or by agreement of the 
Meadowbrook Farms Homeowners’ Association and JGZ Resources, Inc. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated can I have a second. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated can I ask for a roll call vote please, should be short. 
 
Upon roll call vote: 
 
   Board Member Cook  - aye 
   Board Member DiSalvo - aye 
   Board Member Montesano - recused 
   Board Member Pierro  - absent 
   Chairman Rogan  - aye 
 
Motion carries by a vote of 3 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Board Member Pierro is absent and Board Member Montesano is recused, motion 
carries.  Okay, so obviously there are issues that need to be resolved but what I wanted to quickly state is 
that, this issue became a focal point but we have many issues that we also discussed that we were talking 
about resolving.  Issues about the roadways being able to be offered for dedication and those issues are still 
things that we were concerned with.  Upon such time we get a resolution to this, we’ll proceed, we’ll be 
happy to proceed. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated I need to put a few things on the record. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated sure, you need to use a microphone though, please. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated okay, I’m Dian Larkin, attorney for JGZ Resources, I did ask that Dave Pierro be 
recused, and he’s not here.  So, we don’t have to talk about that right now but I do want to go on the record 
that I had made that request and the reason for the request was his speaking on the record about issues 
beyond the record, voicing an opinion on matters not before the Board and therefore acting in an arbitrary 
and capricious manner, expressing bias against my client, the developer.  Also, I need you to read again 
where you say I say that we do not own the land. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated the resolution says, Whereas by letter from Dian M. Larkin-Diaconis, dated June 4, 
2009, subsection A, the developer’s representative acknowledges that the developer does not own said not 
identified as tax map 3.-1-87, on which the stormwater management practices will be located. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated that is not in my letter, it doesn’t say that we don’t own lots designated, whatever, I don’t 
say that in my letter. 
 
Rich Williams stated Mr. Chairman, I had opportunity to review that letter today, that is what I also took 
away from it. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated can you show me what you’re looking at. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 24  

 
Rich Williams stated where you’re saying that the application did not include the common area. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated the application is for the vacant lot, that is what we are trying to develop. 
 
Rich Williams stated right. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated we are trying to develop the vacant lot. 
 
Rich Williams stated but you are also maintaining in the correspondence. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated we’re not trying to develop. 
 
Rich Williams stated that you provided the Board today, that you don’t own the common area and the 
application you made to the Board clearly did say that you own the common area. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that’s true, we do have that information. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated well if we do own the common area, I’ll be back but I don’t think that the application 
says we own the common area, it says we own the vacant lots and we are trying to develop the vacant lots. 
 
Rich Williams stated you included in your application that you own the tax map parcel that is identified as 
the common area that is in the application that you made. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that is what I have here. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated the original application. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated so what you’re saying is that tax map, that lot is owned, that lot is the common, excuse 
me, that lot is the stormwater retention lot. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that lot is where the stormwater retention practices are planned to be. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated we have the right to develop that lot as needed, pursuant to all the other documents, so I 
want to make sure that the record is very clear that whether we do or do not own that lot and I don’t know 
if it has been transferred or not, I have to look at that again.  If it has been transferred, the HOA owns it, if 
the HOA owns, we own the rights to develop it, pursuant to developing those vacant lots, if we own it, we 
have the rights to develop it as we need to but we have the rights and we do own the rights to develop that 
as we need to.  So I need to make sure that record is reflecting that correction because. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated reflecting that because that’s your opinion, I would defer to counsel on that. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated I appreciate that but. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you’re just stating for the record. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated you’re misrepresenting me in record, so I have to clarify my position for the record 
because what you’re saying is misrepresentation of what I’m saying.  You’re misrepresenting me, so I have 
to clarify that for the record. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 25  

 
Carl Lodes stated counsel, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yes, please sir. 
 
Carl Lodes stated the resolution speaks for itself, it is based on documents that are part of the record so 
your objection is well reserved. 
 
Ms. Larkin stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, thank you, thank you very much. 
 
 
9) PATTERSON CROSSING RETAIL CENTER – Continued Review 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Patterson Crossing is off the agenda tonight, they have pulled. 
 
 
10) OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 a. Green Chimney School – Generator Shed 
 
Mrs. Theresa Ryan of Insite Engineering was present to represent the application. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated why don’t we jump to Green Chimneys since Theresa is here for that.  Under Other 
Business we are going to do Green Chimneys, request for the shed.  Let the record show that Mike 
Montesano has rejoined the Board. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated way to clear a room. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated confuse you. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we saw your picture Theresa. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated okay, the architect for the project, Perkins Eastman, put together two sketches, the one is 
a shed, this is what the shed would look like from Doansburg Road, this side. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated and then on the side that faces the school buildings, I’m sorry. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated well before we were telling you, you were speaking too loud, so you know, we 
can’t object too much. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated I know its okay.  Then the side that faces the school would be fenced in and then the 
alternative would be to do the run in shed type of structure, where this is the side that would face 
Doansburg Road and this is the side that would face the dormitory buildings. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I definitely like the first one better, it’s more. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 26  

 
Mrs. Ryan stated more enclosed. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Board Member Cook stated this one. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, the one that is more enclosed.  What is everybody feeling. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated yeah. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated I like the one that is more enclosed. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated definitely. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated is everybody willing to concede to the. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated I don't want to see children having the opportunity to use their heads to 
do something that isn’t necessary to be done.  So, if you don’t give them the temptation they’ll walk past, 
it, if you give them the temptation. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated just from Doansburg Road perspective. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated it looks nicer. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it looks more like a finished shed, finished building. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so I guess it’s the best of the two that everybody seems to agree one. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated so the first one, okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it reminds a little bit of something you see at the nice parks, you have the fenced 
area, that privacy screen and what do you go in there for, its like bathrooms. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated yeah. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated yeah. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you know that is kind of what it reminds me of a little bit. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated a kind of camp or something. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated right. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated also we acknowledge at the work session that the generators that are on site now, 
many of them aren’t fenced at all. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated yes. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 27  

 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you walk right by the dining hall, there is a very large generator that is not screened 
at all, they are not the ugliest things in the world, they are what they are but they are some what of an 
attractive nuisance to climb on.  So this will be much more secure and safe, then not fencing it or enclosing, 
it will allow the air flow, I imagine that the generator has a muffler system that will still dampen the noise 
in the area. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated yes. 
 
Board Member Cook stated I just wanted to make sure, this is a rhetorical question whatever but this is 
going to be lock, the gates. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated oh yeah. 
 
Board Member Cook stated okay. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated temporarily. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we would need, Rich, help me out here, in terms of procedure, we would need a 
motion to approve a change from the previously approved plans to allow the generator enclosure that which 
is submitted tonight. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated I don’t think you approve the architecture. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I thought it was. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated because we didn’t have a building yet, we didn’t know what the size was going to be. 
 
Rich Williams stated yeah I think you did. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we even had a design on it. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated design. 
 
Rich Williams stated what you did was you approved the architecture of the generator enclosure to 
represent what was shown on the plans for the building. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated to match the. 
 
Rich Williams stated right. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated dormitory buildings. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so we are just approving a change to the, we are approving the architectural for. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated and the size. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 28  

 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Rich Williams stated correct, you should memorialize it by a motion. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated there is a change in the size. 
 
Rich Williams stated then are you going to be able to put that on the plans, the final site plans. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated yes. 
 
Rich Williams stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. Make a motion in the matter of Green Chimneys Site Plan for the dormitories 
and the generator enclosure that the Planning Board approves the architectural rendering as submitted that 
show the building closed on three side, that the fencing on the front side or the side that faces the 
dormitories, would that be appropriate. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated the fencing is facing the dormitories and it will have a. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated the unit will be locked at all times it is not being worked on and the colors will 
match the, the red color will match the color of the dormitories. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated yes, with the white trim. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated cover it. 
 
Board Member Cook seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asks for all in favor: 
 
   Board Member Cook  - aye 
   Board Member DiSalvo - aye 
   Board Member Montesano - aye 
   Board Member Pierro  - absent 
   Chairman Rogan  - aye 
 
Motion carries by a vote of 4 to 0. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated thank you very much. 
 
 b. Sign Code 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we have a sign code that we have worked on for a quite long time, we do need to I 
think put this to some sort of resolution.  Can the Board agree to a recommendation to the Town Board on 
the sign code as we’ve been reviewing and changing. 
 
Rich Williams stated if I can bring one last detail up. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated sure. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 29  

 
 
Rich Williams stated talking with Mr. Cook, he has made a suggestion that the contractor signs be handled 
in a similar fashion to what we are proposing to do with the real estate signs where it is an administrative 
permit. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, I agree with that. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated second. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated are doing that can just be a change to the zoning. 
 
Rich Williams stated I will make that change and then send it to the Town Board. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Rich Williams stated everybody is okay with it. 
 
Board Member Cook stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated fine. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated Dave didn’t have any problems that we know of. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated not that I’m aware of. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated now this is going to cover the Town of Patterson or one section again. 
 
Rich Williams stated its going to cover the whole town. 
 
Board Member Cook stated the town. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated I just. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated when I used to ask for that, I used to get these funny looks, can’t do that, 
can’t do that, now I see we’re doing it, much easier. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated with the one change we’ve mentioned tonight on the record, I make a motion that 
the Planning Board recommends to the Town Board that they look favorably on the amended or revised 
real estate, sign code as prepared by the Planning Board and Rich Williams, as presented most recently at 
this weeks meeting. 
 
Board Member Montesano seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asks for all in favor: 
 
   Board Member Cook  - aye 
   Board Member DiSalvo - aye 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 30  

 
   Board Member Montesano - aye 
   Board Member Pierro  - absent 
   Chairman Rogan  - aye 
 
Motion carries by a vote of 4 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated any opposed, okay. 
 
 c. Rimaldi Site Plan – DOT Correspondence 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Rimaldi, thank you.  Under other business we have Rimaldi, which is the 
commercial, retail project proposed next to Panino Deli, we have a letter from the DOT that approves a. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated a, stop. 
 
(Side 1 Ended – 8:37 p.m.) 
 
Board Member Montesano stated gee, you look so nice in the newspapers. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that approves a south bound exit only from the facility, while it is not what we were 
hoping for its better than what we initially thought we were going to get.  So, it will allow greater 
maneuverability say for trucks that would enter the site to make deliveries.  They would be able to then 
drop off their deliveries and leave the site but we would still contemplate the rear delivery area as a 
secondary, correct, even though we have the exit. 
 
Rich Williams stated if you so desire, sure. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I think we should still, we should still look at that, depending on how busy, 
depending on how busy the facility is and I hope they are very busy.  Its nice to know that we have a spot 
where we can get the majority of the deliveries around back, the dumpster still I think should be if we can 
work that out to be the pick up stand around back, we were contemplating that I thought, weren’t we, we 
were, most recently. 
 
Rich Williams stated they had showed a location in the back as an alternative to the one up front, we were 
very concerned, the Board was very concerned about the dumpster location up front because of the distance 
the truck would have to pull in and then back out. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated not that we have that. 
 
Rich Williams stated it almost makes sense to slide it down towards the end. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, well let’s take a look at that again.  What they are looking for, would be their 
next step really would be to go to the ZBA and they need a special use permit for the retail center and they 
also need a variance because of the acreage, the Code requires what, five acres at this point in time, I think 
its five. 
 
Rich Williams stated I don’t want to comment on that. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, I think its five, I think its used to be more and I think it was reduced to five. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 31  

 
 
Rich Williams stated it was fifteen, I think we dropped it to five. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated yeah. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and they have a little over three acres, so.  Are they going to be coming in next 
month, should they come in, can we do a recommendation to the, to send them to ZBA. 
 
Rich Williams stated if you do a recommendation to the ZBA. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I want to know what the acreage is. 
 
Rich Williams stated if you do a recommendation tonight to the ZBA, they are going to look to make that 
application for the first meeting, I think in July. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, I believe that the acreage is five, based on our conversations and based on 
what we’ve read in their submittals, Maria, Mike. 
 
Board Member Cook stated I’m for it. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated yeah. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated yeah. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated let them start. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated I’d like to see a positive recommendation for it. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated sure. 
 
Board Member Cook stated I make a motion that the Planning Board refer the Rimaldi Site Plan 
Application to the Zoning Board of Appeals for the special, for their special use permit with a positive 
recommendation. 
 
Board Member Montesano seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asks for all in favor: 
 
   Board Member Cook  - aye 
   Board Member DiSalvo - aye 
   Board Member Montesano - aye 
   Board Member Pierro  - absent 
   Chairman Rogan  - aye 
 
Motion carries by a vote of 4 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Rich, do we also have to do a recommendation for the. 
 
Board Member Cook stated what did I say. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 32  

 
 
Carl Lodes stated Site Plan, you said special use permit. 
 
Board Member Cook stated I’m sorry. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I thought you said special use permit. 
 
Board Member Cook stated I did say special use permit. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated he said refer their site plan application to the ZBA for a special use permit, I think 
was the word. 
 
Rich Williams stated just clarify for the record. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay and do we also need to make a recommendation for, I mean, that covers it, 
special use permit because we also have the. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated the area variance. 
 
Rich Williams stated that will be fine. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, so we have that.  Mystic Bronze did not come in tonight, if you could please 
just reach out to them, let them know that clearly we would like to work with them on getting a sign 
approved for their site.  I drove by there tonight and I had to look for the place, I didn’t realize it was 
around the corner from Blockbuster. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated next to nail salon. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated but it would seem that they need a sign that stands, you have to look under the 
canopy to even see the store. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated well did you see the new canopy signs they made above the doorways. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I didn’t. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated its like if you’re walking by the Dollar Store and you look up and it says 
Dollar Store, its like a little bump out, wooden sign and each store has it, I just noticed it the other day. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh, I didn’t notice. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated you go around the bend and the nail salon has it and then there is nothing by 
the tanning salon. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I wonder whether they should consider a sign though, certainly not with neon 
flashing lights but a sign that would be out on the, facia, façade. 
 
Rich Williams stated façade. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 33  

 
Chairman Rogan stated in other words, you’re looking from [Route] 22, and even from the parking lot it 
seems like its so buried in there. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated (inaudible). 
 
Chairman Rogan stated its very hard to see, very difficult site there for that facility but maybe you can 
reach out to the owner and let them know our discussions and maybe help them, point them in the right 
direction. 
 
Rich Williams stated okay. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated with that sign, if I can interrupt you for a second. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated please do sir. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated would it be, now we did that for the barber shop here in town and 
Magnolia’s that they could get a sign sticking out, would that be a similar situation where, let’s say the 
corner of the building, if they got permission. 
 
Rich Williams stated a perpendicular sign. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated they have them up already. 
 
Rich Williams stated putting it on the corner of the building, really, wouldn’t be highly visible from 22, you 
know I took a ride by also and in my opinion, she needs something higher up lever with 22, so as the traffic 
going by on 22. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated what I’m looking at is all the people coming in to the parking lot that are 
not aware that there is a business there, I mean you’ve got the insurance company, it took me months for 
me to realize that they were an insurance company. 
 
Rich Williams stated that is why you need a pile on sign on the front. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated okay, I just like to see if you’re in business to try keep you in business for 
something that minor but I don’t hear any comments so. 
 
 
11) MINUTES 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we have minutes for this, that we can approve, Charlie. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated the May 7th minutes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we have a few. 
 
Board Member Cook stated I make a motion that the Planning Board approve the minutes of April 2nd, 
April 28th and May 7th. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo seconded the motion. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 34  

 
 
Chairman Rogan asks for all in favor: 
 
   Board Member Cook  - aye 
   Board Member DiSalvo - aye 
   Board Member Montesano - aye 
   Board Member Pierro  - absent 
   Chairman Rogan  - aye 
 
Motion carries by a vote of 4 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated anyone have anything else they want to bring up for tonight, from anyone, no. 
 
Rich Williams stated just one last issue I have for the Board, just so you’re aware.  An application has been 
made to the Town Board by NRA Realty Subdivision based on the past recommendation from the Board.  I 
believe its going to be appearing at the next Town Board meeting. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated great. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated did they ever straighten out the situation with the house with the zoning 
issue. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that is why she doesn’t hear you. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated did we ever straighten out the issue with the house with the zoning issues. 
 
Rich Williams stated no. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated so we are going to move ahead on this with violation on the property. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated they are moving ahead, we’re not.  They are moving to Town, that is something 
that I’m sure the Town Board should aware of when they are contemplating this 280-A, that there are 
existing violations. 
 
Rich Williams stated they are fairly aware of it. 
 
Board Member Cook stated well there is a write a letter from Mr. Curtiss to the owner of the property, I 
think, asking them to, that that issue must be addressed. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated and maybe from Dave Raines. 
 
Rich Williams stated there has been a letter from Mr. Curtiss and I believe it was discussed with the Town 
Board by the attorney. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated has anybody gone out to see how that guys doing with the fill permit. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I’ve driven by it almost on a daily basis, he has added some fill. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
June 4, 2009 Minutes Page 35  

 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated has he. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated racked it out a little bit, he sits the excavator on there, he’s using the excavator as a 
compaction tool. 
 
Rich Williams stated they’re moving slow though. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, that’s probably not a bad thing. 
 
Rich Williams stated no its not. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated allows some compaction. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo stated settles more. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you know, he puts the excavator at least in a position where it acts as a little bit of a 
barrier, you know right now, where the kids aren’t playing on the fill pad and the vehicles are not going to 
go down over the bank.  Motion to adjourn. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated I gotta make a motion to adjourn. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated thank you sir, can I have a second. 
 
Board Member DiSalvo seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asks for all in favor: 
 
   Board Member Cook  - aye 
   Board Member DiSalvo - aye 
   Board Member Montesano - aye 
   Board Member Pierro  - absent 
   Chairman Rogan  - aye 
 
Motion carries by a vote of 4 to 0. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:37 p.m. 


	Agenda & Minutes - 6-4-09.pdf
	PB Meeting Minutes 6-4-09.pdf

